
From: Katherine Howard
To: Wigglesworth, Simon
Subject: RE: EPR/CP3025LX/A001Willow View Farm
Date: 19 March 2025 08:33:21
Attachments: Appendix 5 Non Technical Summary Willow View Farm UPDATED.pdf

Appendix 6 Technical Standards Willow View Farm UPDATED.pdf
Appendix 15 BAT Compliance Document.pdf
Appendix 1b Drainage Plan UPDATED 1.jpg
Duly making questions WILLOW VIEW FARM.docx

Good morning Simon
 
A slight delay with the response as we were away for a couple of days last week.
 
I have worked through the Duly Making questions and have put responses in red. 
Supporting documentation is attached.  The Drainage Plan is now looking somewhat busy
but it should include everything you asked for.
 
Regards
 
Katherine
 
From: Wigglesworth, Simon <simon.wigglesworth@environment-agency.gov.uk> 
Sent: 14 March 2025 13:50
To: Katherine Howard <katherine@towergreen.co.uk>
Subject: EPR/CP3025LX/A001Willow View Farm

 
Katherine
Good afternoon
I have just picked up this application for validation/duly making within 4-week window from
move when admin checks done (05/03/25)
 
Please find attached duly making questions
At a very basic level just trying to understand if a current under EPR threshold poultry farm (
40,000 places or less) going over threshold, correct ?
Also, I may missed BAT responses, but I have asked for this and if provided please point me
to correct document
To assist BAT guidance for Intensive Farms also attached.
 
Fee wise if no relevant receptors within 100 m , no Dust Bio aerosol Management Plan
needed then no additional fees required
 
Conclusion
Please can you respond by Monday 31st March 2025 , to work within 4 week deadline,
allowing a day for any final updates after your responses
Please do not hesitate to contact me if useful
 
Thanks in advance.
Best wishes.

mailto:katherine@towergreen.co.uk
mailto:simon.wigglesworth@environment-agency.gov.uk
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Appendix 5: Non Technical Summary, Willow View Farm 
 
10/02/25 Updated 18/03/25 
 
Summary 
 


 Existing house (House 1) with 32,000 places (under permitting regulations 


 Proposed new house (House 2) for 32,000 places 
 


 Taking the site to a total of 64,000 places. 
 


 Current facilities – All construction aspects relating to House 1 including drainage system and fully 
fenced range 


 
Part I 
Poultry Houses and Bird Numbers 
 
House 1 
Constructed in 2024 - free range multi-tier laying system in a newly-built poultry house with a total 
number of 32,000 bird places. 
 
House 2 
Proposed new house - free range multi-tier laying system in a newly-built poultry house with a total 
number of 32,000 bird places. 
 
Overall Bird Places 
64,000 bird places in total at the site. 
 
Part II 
Poultry House Construction and Ventilation Summary 
 
The houses are constructed of a galvanised steel framework with polyester-coated galvanised steel 
sheeting walls. The roofing is insulated with polystyrene and fibreglass material. The houses are a 
multi‐tier system with a concrete floor.  
 
Ventilation in both houses will be provided with side inlets and ridge extraction fans.  Ventilation is high 
velocity (stack greater than 5.5m and flux velocity >11 m/s).  There are four gable end fans in each house 
which are used as emergency ventilation (used typically in hot weather). 
 
Roof drainage is through a ‘French drainage’ system. 
 
Part III 
The Site  
 
The land around the site is predominantly agricultural. The surrounding topography is relatively flat and 
low lying.  
There are 2 Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) within 5km of the installation, and 4 Local Wildlife Sites 
(LWS) within 2km. An assessment of the impact of emissions has been carried out and the installation is 
considered to have no adverse effect on the nature conservation sites.  
 
The site is subject to a Climate Change Levy Agreement included with the Carr Farm site.  
 







2 


 


This permit implements the requirements of the European Union Directive on Industrial Emissions.  
 
Willow View Farm will comprise of two free-range laying poultry houses, referred to House 1 and House 2.  
House 1 was built in 2024 but fell below permitting regulations (32,000 places). 
 
Laying hens are brought into the houses at 16-weeks old from the rearing units owned and operated by K 
Fresh Ltd. The birds are contained inside the houses for up to five weeks before being permitted to range 
round the fenced grassy area.  The birds are housed for up to 80-weeks before being de-populated and a 
clean-down operation carried out before re-populating in 3 to 6 weeks.  Prior to the arrival of the birds the 
houses are bedded up with virgin wood shavings.  There is no form of artificial heating in the houses. 
 
Eggs are collected via a conveyor system daily and placed into trays before being stacked on pallets for 
transfer to the Packing Centre for supply to customers. 
 
Water is provided to the houses via nipple drinkers with spillage cups below.  Water usage is monitored 
daily by water meters.  This, together with environmental computer control in the houses helps to 
maintain a consistent environment and hence reduces ammonia levels and odours.  Low energy lighting 
systems are achieved with the use of both fluorescent and LED lighting throughout the site 
 
Wheat is grown at Carr Farm and also purchased locally and milled by the company’s feed mill at Carr 
Farm. The company also purchases other ingredients to complete the diets.  Diets are formulated 
according to best practice as well as to suit the birds’ requirements and stage of growth.  Milled feed is 
transported to Willow View Farm in a sealed bulker unit and stored onsite in fully enclosed purpose built 
holding bins. 
 
Litter is removed twice per week via the belt system throughout the laying cycle and the houses are then 
fully mucked out at the end of the laying cycle.  This is carried out by a small mechanical loading shovel 
tipping the manure into trailers before being exported to surrounding farms and spread on arable land.  
After the manure is removed the houses are pressure washed.  Houses are designed with a sloping floor to 
ensure all wash water is channelled to the front of the houses where it is then diverted into a purpose-
built water storage tank.  Chemical used for cleaning down are supplied by the cleaning contractors and 
footbath chemical is kept in the storage area at the site.  The storage area is secure, frost and fire resistant 
and capable of retaining spillage.  Spent disinfectants from footbaths are disposed of according to 
requirements of SGN EPR6.09. 


Lightly contaminated roof water (rain water) drainage is via French drains which drain into the local 
watercourse leading off site via one drain eventually leading into Roos Drain. 


Bird mortalities are removed immediately from the houses and placed in a freezer.  The contents are as 
required and taken to Carr Farm to be incinerated. 
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Appendix 6: Technical Standards, Willow View Farm 
 
10/02/25 Updated 18/03/25 
 
Note: All standards are laid out in line with BAT Conclusions, under Directive 2010/75/EU of the European 
Parliament and of the Council, for the Intensive Rearing of Poultry or Pigs 
 
Operations 
The farm operates in accordance with the Sector Guidance Notes (SGN) EPR6.09. 
 
Feed 
Wheat is grown at Carr Farm and also purchased locally and milled by the company’s feed mill on the Carr 
Farm site.  The company also purchases other ingredients to complete the diets.  Milled feed is 
transported in a sealed bulker unit to the site and directly transferred to the feed bins through a sealed 
pipe. 
 
Feed Management 
Feed is stored in fully enclosed feed bins which are situated near to the poultry houses.  The feed bins are 
situated away from site traffic to avoid collisions.  Selection and use of feed is in accordance with SGN 
EPR6.09.  Birds are fed a minimum of two diets between day old and point of lay.  Phosphorus levels in 
rations are reduced over the rearing and production cycle and protein is reduced over the growing period 
based on bird needs.  Diets are recorded and continually monitored. 


 
Housing 
Housing design and management is in accordance with the SGN EPR6.09a and in line with BAT Techniques 
BAT 31 Technique 3.1.1 (b. 4) 
 
House 1 and House 2 
Ventilation – side inlets, high velocity ridge extraction fans (stack greater than 5.5m and flux velocity >11 
m/s) plus four gable end fans in each house which are used as emergency ventilation (used typically in hot 
weather). 
Insulation – fibreglass material with U-Value 0.23 W/m2/°C. 
 
The ventilation systems are operated to achieve optimum humidity levels for the stage of production in all 
weather and seasonal conditions. 
 
All houses are fitted with a nipple drinker system with spillage cups below. 
 
Proposal for a multi-tier laying system in which the birds are encouraged to go up the system but do have 
the freedom to range on the floor.  When the birds are at the top of the system any faeces drops through 
the mesh floor and onto the muck belt which runs underneath the system. 
As well as litter being removed twice per week via the belt system, the floor litter will be removed at the 
end of the rearing cycle and immediately exported from site. 
 
General Management 
The poultry houses are regularly inspected and maintained and are kept clean including the walls and 
floors of the buildings. 
 
Poultry Numbers and Movements 
Passports are held for each bird and movement details are documented. 
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Manure Management Planning 
All manure will be immediately removed from site and exported for storage and spreading on arable land. 
 
Improvement Programme 
A review of the efficiencies of each house will be carried out within 12 months from the permit issue date.  
A review of drainage systems on the site will be carried out within 12 months from the permit issue date. 
 
Emissions and Monitoring 
The septic tank is built to conform to specifications in SGN EPR6.09 and has no emissions to surface water 
or land. 
 
Table of emission points - UPDATED 
 


Emission Point 
Description 


Source Receiving 
Watercourse 


Location 


Emissions to Air    


HV Ridge extraction fans  
House 1 & 2 


n/a Identified on Ventilation Plan 
– Appendix 1c Side inlets 


Gable end emergency 
fans 


Exhaust on generator Generator n/a Identified on Ventilation Plan 
– Appendix 1c 


Emissions to Land/Water    


Klargester Treatment 
Plant (domestic waste 
only) 


Uncontaminated water Roos Drain Identified on Site Drainage 
Plan – Appendix 1b 


Roof water to ditch 
(Discharge Point 1) via 
Attenuation Pond No. 1 


House 1 Uncontaminated 
rain water from roof via  
French Drains 


Roos Drain Identified on Site Drainage 
Plan – Appendix 1b 


Roof water to ditch 
(Discharge Point 2) via 
Attenuation Pond No. 2 


House 2 Uncontaminated 
rain water from roof via 
French Drains 


Roos Drain Identified on Site Drainage 
Plan – Appendix 1b 


Yard water to ditch 
(Discharge Point 1) via 
Attenuation Pond No. 1 


House 1 
Uncontaminated rain water 
from yard area via French 
Drains 


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


 
Fugitive Emissions 
Appropriate measures for preventing and minimising fugitive emissions are in place in accordance with the 
SGN EPR6.09.  Buildings are maintained and in a good state of repair.  The manure is removed at the end 
of the rearing cycle (16 weeks) and is removed from the site immediately via a tractor and trailer therefore 
there is no build-up of manure anywhere on the site.  Footbaths in the entrance to all houses are managed 
to ensure they do not overflow.  Spent disinfection is disposed of safely.  Cleaning and disinfection takes 
place after de-population of houses. 
 
Dust 
Feed is transported to the site in a sealed bulker unit and is transferred into sealed feed bins via a sealed 
pipe. 
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Houses are ventilated by the use of extraction fans in order to reduce the build up of dust particles within 
the houses. 
 
Mortality Management 
Bird mortalities are removed immediately from the houses and placed in a secured freezer.  The contents 
are removed from site in a frozen state for incineration. 
 
Flies 
Floor litter is not removed until the end of the laying cycle and is removed immediately from the site.  This 
system effectively reduces any fly infestations of the farm.  Should a fly infestation occur then appropriate 
specialist assistance will be sought.  
 
Diesel Container Bunding 
The Diesel tank which supplies the fuel to the generator is appropriately bunded.  The tank is 
approximately 2 years old and therefore complies with the Control of Pollution (Silage, Slurry and 
Agricultural Fuel Oil) Regulations 1991 (Amended 1997). 
 
Odour 
There are no residential dwellings within 400m of the installation.  There is no history of complaints 
relating to odours resulting from the activities carried out at the site. 
 
Noise and Vibration 
There are no residential dwellings within 400m of the installation.  There is no history of complaints 
relating to noise resulting from the activities carried out at the site. 
 








Appendix 15: BAT Compliance Document – Willow View Farm 
 
Reviewed 18/03/25 
 
The site will use the COMMISSION IMPLEMENTING DECISION (EU) 2017/302 of 15 February 2017 establishing best available techniques (BAT) conclusions, 
under Directive 2010/75/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council, for the intensive rearing of poultry or pigs to ensure compliance. 
 
Summary of Buildings on Installation 
 


Name of Building Function BAT 24:  


N/P manure 


monitoring 


 


BAT 25:  


Ammonia 


monitoring 


 


BAT 26: 


Odour monitoring 


with frequency 


 


BAT 27: 


Dust monitoring 


 


BAT 31: 


Which of housing 


techniques are to 


be used 


 


House 1 
 


Free Range Laying A A n/a – no receptors B 3.1.1 (b. 4) 


House 2 
 


Free Range Laying A A n/a – no receptors B 3.1.1 (b. 4) 
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EPR/CP3025LX/A001 WILLOW VIEW FARM Validation Duly Making questions 

Duly Making Questions

1. Non-Tech Summary (NTS)

Please just update NTS with following additions: 

· [bookmark: _GoBack]Please just bullet points changes ie ? 32,000 to 64,000, One house old one house new correct ? Yes correct

Please summarise what facilities are current and what new for future construction

· Clean yard Water emissions : lightly contaminated yard water is that sent via french drains also and then off site?

· Water discharges: please confirm is there one or two discharges beyond installation boundary for clean water?

NTS updated with questions answered above – updates to the document highlighted in yellow



2. BAT

Please provide BAT compliance document adding BAT monitoring compliance methods the farm will use to cover the following:

· BAT 24 : N/P manure monitoring

· BAT 25 : Ammonia monitoring 

· BAT 26 : Odour monitoring with frequency

· BAT 27 : Dust monitoring.

· BAT 31: Which of housing techniques are to be used

Appendix 15 attached

3. Dust Management Plans 

Please confirm  no receptors within 100m of installation boundary when including farmer/operator staff owned premises.

If there are any such receptors, please provide a Dust and Bioaerosol Management Plan with list of receptors within 100 m of boundary including for each receptor:

[bookmark: _Hlk191449529]Name of receptor/NGR/direction from farm and distance in m from boundary

Fee: If such a management plan is required, please provide additional £620 review fee.

I can confirm no receptors within 100m of the installation boundary.



4. Site drainage plan/housing detail

        Please ensure site drainage is accurate and update plan accordingly

       Specifically 

· Please confirm and add on plan clean yard and roof water both going via french drains

· Please extend lines if we understand correct that clean water emissions discharge beyond installation boundary         

· so lines go boundary boundary and label D1/D2 as necessary.

Appendix 1b Drainage Plan updated



5. Tech standards document

              Please provide a tech standards document covering points below linked to emissions table:

· Water emissions : D1- D3 for each one please confirm which poultry houses go to which discharge and confirm roof water and clean yard water also

· Land emissions : please add soakaways french drains)  S1, S2, S3 acting as soakaways and which houses /water sources go to which ponds

· Klargester treatment plant : please confirm this is domestic waste and not linked to IF installation.

Please confirm a name for receiving water course for clean water discharges.

Appendix 6 Technical Standards updated to confirm the above – changes highlighted in yellow



6. Standby Generator: Please confirm for each generator they are < 1MW thermal input capacity and tested no more than 1 hour per week and overall usage for standby electricity/testing is < 500 hours per annum

I can confirm the above.



7. Odour and Noise Management Plans: Please confirm definitely no receptors within 400 m of the full installation boundary

I can confirm to receptors within 400m of the installation boundary.



8. Free range run off containment

Please review whether there is a slope linked to the free range areas

· For all such slopes where there is a risk of run off beyond installation boundary please provide an action plan for mitigation measures inside installation boundary to contain anc collect manure run off before leaving site to protect local watercourses

No slopes on the site.



9. Planning 

At time of application, you stated  EIA FULL EIA please provide the full EIA

This was included with the original application – Appendix 14a Ammonia Impact Assessment and 14b Flood Risk and Drainage Assessment.

SW 14.03.25



Simon Wigglesworth

Principal Permitting Officer

Installations Food and Intensive Farming Permitting Team

Permitting.

Environment Agency 

Mobile: 07884215343
 
 
 
 
 
Information in this message may be confidential and may be legally privileged. If you
have received this message by mistake, please notify the sender immediately, delete
it and do not copy it to anyone else. We have checked this email and its attachments
for viruses. But you should still check any attachment before opening it. We may
have to make this message and any reply to it public if asked to under the Freedom of
Information Act, Data Protection Act or for litigation. Email messages and
attachments sent to or from any Environment Agency address may also be accessed
by someone other than the sender or recipient, for business purposes.


